SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 1, 2016
9:15 a.m

9: 15: 26 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Kelly called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 9:15 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co- Chair

Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair

Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senator Lyman Hof fman (via tel econference)

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Donny O son

ALSO PRESENT

Pat Pitney, Director, Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget,
O fice of the Governor

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

SUMVARY

APRESENTATI ON: FY 16 UNALLOCATED AND PGCSI TI ON REDUCTI ONS

9:16: 02 AM

PAT PITNEY, D RECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET,
OFFI CE OF THE GOVERNOR, introduced her support staff.

9:17:45 AM

Ms. Pitney discussed the presentation "FY 17 Budget
Overview - Unall ocated and Position Reductions". She shared
that the wunallocated reductions were the result of
negoti ati ons between the adm nistration and the |egislature
during the previous legislative session; roughly $38



mllion would be taken from salary increases in order to
nove forward. She addressed Slide 2, "FY16 Unallocated
Reduction by Department”, which offered a bar graph
illustrating the anobunt of the deductions, per state
departnment. She said that the adm nistration allocated the
$30 mllion of wunallocated reductions, while focusing on
efficiencies and other efforts for savings. She explained
that the efficiency practices that the admnistration was
working on dealt with contract negotiations; the state has
a range of $1 billion to $2 billion in everyday contracts.
The state had hoped to renegotiate many of the contracts in
order to cover costs. She opined that it had been difficult
to put wunallocated reductions against particular contract
savings, but that the reductions had to be taken sonewhere
in order to neet the cost. She said that during the 2015
summer nonths the departnents each reviewed their anount of
unal | ocated reduction and then put forward a nunber to be
consi der ed.

9: 20: 03 AM

Ms. Pitney drew attention to a backup docunent entitled "FY
2016 Unal l ocated Reduction for Salary/COLA Increases (6)"
(copy on file). The <chart showed the magnitude of
unal | ocated reductions based on the $30 mllion figure;
additionally, when the legislature left after conference
commttee 2015, there were 9 departments wth additional
unal | ocated reductions that were passed out of the budget
totaling $4 mllion. She spoke to the top row of the
detailed table on Page 1. She noted that the salary
adj ustnments that made up the unallocated reduction could be
found in the fourth colum. She said that if every
departnment took an unallocated reduction that was equal to
their salary increase, it would follow the fourth col um.

9:21: 35 AM

Co-Chair Kelly understood that the average was not
wei ghted, but was a percentage of increase the departnent
woul d have experienced, charged against the total.

Ms. Pitney explained that the salary increases had been
funded, which neant that every departnent received and
equi val ent anmount for their salary increases, but then the
departnments took a corresponding reduction. Al if the
executive agencies took a higher reduction because those
agencies had to absorb legislative salary increases and

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 02/01/16 9:15 A M



judicial salary increases. She furthered that savings that
m ght ot herwi se be exacted had been taken into account when
nmoving on the distribution of the unall ocated reductions.

9:23: 26 AM

Ms. Pitney referred to Page 2 of the unallocated reduction
docunent, noting that it explained all of the various
reductions that had been taken in an effort to neet the
unal | ocated distribution. She pointed out to the conmttee
t hat the Departnent of Adm nistration had reduced
unrestricted funds available for |ease costs, reduced
positions and enforced furloughs, and reduced unrestricted
funds for facility rental.

9: 24: 25 AM

Co-Chair Kelly asked whether there had been savings due to
efficiencies in space distribution.

Ms. Piney attenpted to answer.

Co-Chair Kelly interjected that he would get back to the
guestion after the presentation was conpl ete.

9:24: 38 AM

Ms. Pitney pointed out the Departnent Conmerce, Community,
and Econom c Devel opnent had taken an unal |l ocated redcution
in the area of tourism marketing, and outreach for rura
ener gy pr ogr ans (Page 3). She hi ghl i ght ed | ar ger
unal | ocated reductions in the Departnment of Corrections in
the areas of prisoner transport and physical health care
She conti nued to t he Depar t ment of Envi r onnment al
Conservation, which had reduced two engi neer positions by
stream ining the Pipeline Integrity Program

9:26:42 AM

Vi ce-Chair M cciche wondered who would be nost qualified to
di scuss the philosophy of the Departnent of Environnental
Conservati on

Ms. Pitney responded that Larry Hartig, Comm ssioner,
Departnent of Environnental Conservation would be the best
person to answer questions concerning that particular
depart nment.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 02/01/16 9:15 A M



9:27:24 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy relayed that the Departnent of Education
and Early Chil dhood Devel opnent had reduced their personnel
services by $200,000, but had maintained 3 vacancies. He
asked whether position control nunbers (PCN) were being
elimnated in every departnent.

Ms. Pitney stated that the present slide was the only slide
in the presentation on unallocated reductions, the rest of
the presentation was on position vacancies. She said that
positions were not being reduced for every agency, but that
880 positions had been reduce since FY 15.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked how many of the 880 positions that
had been elim nated were PCNs.

Senat or Dunl eavy understood that state |aw stipul ated that
state school boards should approve education budgets. He
asked whether school boards were, by law, independent in
t he preparation, execution, and approval of school budgets.

Ms. Pitney agreed to provide the information at a |ater
dat e.

9:30: 01 AM

Ms. Pitney discussed Page 4 of the backup docunent, noting
that the Departnent of Fish and Gane had taken reductions
in personal services and studies. She furthered that the
Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS) had frozen
cost of living increases for various service providers and
progranms; bigger cost savings were associated the federa
funds that acconpanied Medicaid expansion. She continued
that each departnent had a listing, and that the nunber of
transactions that it took to accommpbdate an wunall ocated
reducti on were many. She asserted that the reductions were
made up of many snmall reductions, and thought that given
the nature of the budget, the reductions were nmade to
create the smallest amount of inmpact on departnents. She
stressed that identical savings would no |onger be
avai l able in the next round of reductions.

9:32:31 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon referred to Slide 2. She understood that
only general find dollars were reflected on the slide.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 02/01/16 9:15 A M



Ms. Pitney responded in the affirmative.

Co- Chair MacKinnon asserted that the current governor's
budget reflected an actual total increase of 1.2 percent in
total spending.

Ms. Pitney asked whether she was speaking to FY 16, or FY
17.

Co-Chair MacKinnon clarified that the FY 17 budget had an
i ncrease in spending of 1.2 percent.

Ms. Pitney replied yes, when considering federal funds.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon contended that savings reflected in the
DHSS budget did not represent a reduction in spending, but
t he supplanting of UG with federal funds.

Ms. Pitney replied that there were 2 conponents at play:
paying for a service wth federal funds that would
ot herw se be paid for with general funds, and the reduction
in the anmount of noney that the state would pay for the
staff avail abl e.

9:33: 57 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon queried the aforenentioned elimnated
880 positions.

Ms. Pitney stated that there were two ways in which to view
the work force: 880 positions had been elimnated from FY
16, 600 fewer full time enployees were working in the
agencies that canme through the state accounting system
Department  of Labor statistics reflected 1400 fewer
enpl oyees on the payroll than in fall of 2014.

9:35:13 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon opined that the presentation |acked
clarity. She requested a straightforward |ist of PCNs that
had been elimnated from each departnment in the FY 16
budget, as well as the dollar value associated with the PCN
nunber . Addi tionally, she requested the PCN nunber
associated with the vacancy factor. She understood that
federal dollars were being used to mamintain services, but
felt that any reoccurring operating reductions renmained

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 02/01/16 9:15 A M



unclear. She felt that the information would be useful to
t he Operating Budget Subcommttees.

9:37: 03 AM

Co-Chair Kelly used the analogy of fat cells to illustrate
PCNs that were not associated with enpl oyees.

9:37:29 AM

Senator Dunl eavy understood that the departnental budgets
were shrinking, but wanted assurances that overal |
gover nment was shri nki ng.

9:38:18 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche pondered efficiency in governnment. He
said that efficient organizational charts were triangular
shaped, while state governnents tended to be bell shaped

He wondered whether departnments were being evaluated for
staff efficiency.

9:40: 11 AM

Ms. Pitney responded to Vice-Chair Mcciche regarding the
span of control for supervisors and "paper pushers”. She
said that nmerging of director positions was being left to
the discretion of conm ssioners. She said that the
adm ni stration was actively pur sui ng facilities
consolidation; several departnents were exploring how
facility maintenance for Juneau facilities ~could be
consol i dat ed under one unbrell a.

9:41:49 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche felt that an overlaying philosophy
should limt +the nunber of people reporting to each
supervi sory posi tion. He wonder ed whet her t he

adm nistration planned to stream ine organizational charts
for each departnent.

Ms. Pitney stated that the philosophy was to |ook at
whet her supervisory positions were adequate. She said the
phi |l osophy was not prescriptive, given the diverse nature
of the different operation, but maximzing the span of
control was a clear philosophy across departnents.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 02/01/16 9:15 A M



9:43: 13 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche thought that as the subcommttees noved
through the budget process it wuld be inportant to
understand the role of |abor costs when searching for cost
efficiencies. He said that he would be requesting the
departnments of the subcomrmittees that he <chaired to
denonstrate that they had an optinmum distribution of |abor
across the board.

9:44: 30 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon asserted that it was difficult for the
public, let alone the Ilegislature, to wunderstand the
nuances of the elimnating of positions. She contended that
Ms. Pitney had wused several figures when discussion
position reductions, which was confusing and unclear. She
wanted to know how the position counts would affect, |ong-
term the FY 17 budget going forward. She nentioned that
the state was facing a budget deficit.

9:46: 26 AM

Co-Chair Kelly interjected that in the previous session the
commttee had worked to nake absolute cuts. He hoped to
come to an agreenment with the admnistration over the
actual number of jobs cut in the current budget.

9:48: 29 AM

Senat or Bi shop added that both the admnistration and the
| egi sl ature needed to be working with the same nunbers and
i nformation.

9:49: 05 AM

Senat or Dunleavy furthered that it would be difficult for
him to support any revenue enhancenents if he was not sure
of the baseline in governnent. He argued that the burden
was on the admnistration to prove to him that enough
reductions had been nade, before seriously discussing
revenue enhancenents.

9: 50: 08 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 02/01/16 9:15 A M



Co-Chair Kelly asked that unallocated reductions be clearly
identified when the admnistration submtted its budget
amendnments in two weeks.

9: 50: 35 AM

Ms. Pitney discussed Slide 3, "Available Position and
Enpl oyee Data":

What position and enpl oyee data are avail abl e?

* Budgeted positions (all agencies)

 Filled positions (agencies using the state
accounting and payroll system

e Al state enployees (Departnment of Labor and
Wor kf or ce Devel opnent)

Ms. Pitney stated that significant reductions had been
made. She explained that budgeted positions were "slots”
that could only be filled if there was funding. She said
that sone positions had sonme noney, federal or otherw se.
She asserted that the ability for work to get done was
based on the capacity of the workforce; governnment is
service and service is built on the nunber of enployees
available to provide services. She stated that specific
accounting detail was available for the 600 fewer state
enpl oyees, and the nunber was being tracked on a nonthly
basis. She added that budgeted positions from FY15 to FY17
decreased by 871 positions.

9:53: 57 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered why conparisons had not been
l[imted to FY16 and FY17, when the current admnistration
t ook over the governor's office. She warned that if the 600
positions previously nention had gone over to the
retirement system it would result in new costs for state
government. She added that if the reduction in positions
resulted in people claimng unenpl oynent that would al so be
of additional cost to the state. She queried where the
peopl e that had held the reduced 600 positions had gone.

9:55: 36 AM
AT EASE

9:56:48 AM
RECONVENED

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 02/01/16 9:15 A M



Co-Chair Kelly requested a report that delineated the
different categories for PCN nunbers, and a report based on
inpacts on the Public Enployees' Retirenent System (PERS)
and the Teacher's Retirenment System

9:57: 33 AM

Ms. Pitney presented Slide 4, "FY2008-FY2017 Budgeted
Positions". She relayed that OVB had conpared the nunbers
after the election of the current governor. She asserted
that the nunbers were from the time of the current
adm nistration and not previous adnm nistrations. She said
t hat budgeted positions had been reduced and del eted out of
the system the state was down to 24,000 budgeted
positions, which was |ower than FY 08 nunbers.

9:59: 01 AM

Ms. Pitney turned to Slide 5, "State Enployees 2008-2015"
She explained that the slide reflected all state enpl oyees
that were being paid on a nonthly basis, which was also
lower than in FY 08. She said that the nunber of people
bei ng paid was down to the 2008 | evel

9:59: 31 AM

Co-Chair MacKi nnon asked whether there was a discernable
rel ati onship between the PCNs and private contracts.

Ms. Pitney reiterated that the slide reflected actua
enpl oyees and not PCNs. She said that to the degree that
there was a service required that needed a contract, a
contract would be filled. She thought that 1 in 50 of the
deleted PCNs mght require the state to seek out a contract
enpl oyee. She furthered that funding for contracts was | ess
than noney for actual enployees, which mad the practice
unconmon

10: 00: 52 AM

Co-Chair MacKi nnon asserted that she would Ilike the
Division of Legislative Legal to |ook over the overall
contract line to see if contract services had increased.

10: 01: 08 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 02/01/16 9:15 A M



Senat or Dunl eavy asked whether the increase in enployees
from 2013 to 2014 had been related to pipeline activities.

Ms. Pitney replied that she could look into the issue and
provide information at a | ater date.

10: 01: 37 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche thought that the charts on Slide 4 and
Slide 5 denonstrated approximately 1000 nore enpl oyees had
exi sted on the books than had been covered in the budget.
He wondered about the enployee figures for FY16, and the
assunpti ons for FY17; he specul at ed t hat past
adm ni strations had al so exceeded their budgets in payroll
costs. He queried why the chart on Page 5 stopped at 2015.

Ms. Pitney replied that 2015 was the cal endar year on Page
5, the state had yet to receive January 2016 data from the
Departnment of Labor and W rkforce Developnent. She said
that the data reflected actual bodies being paid. She added
that often, tenporary, non-permnent enployees would not be
| isten under a PCN

10: 03: 13 AM

Ms. Pitney discussed Slide 6, "Filled Positions by Location
2014- 2015". She noted that the slide contained the
percentage change in positions from Decenber 31, 2014 to
Novenber 15, 2015. She said that the positions had been
full-time and part-tinme permanent enployees held by people
who had been benefit eligible. She relayed that Anchorage
was down 193 positions, 38 in Fairbanks, 198 in Juneau, 3
in the Lower Kuskokwim and 15 in Arctic. She offered that
sone of the positions nmay have been vacated by a retiree
but technically, funding for retirement should have been
col l ected over the course of the person's enpl oynent.

10: 04: 51 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon noted that the slide reflected an
increase for out-of-Alaska enploynent; 9 percent, with a
position count of 2. She furthered that G eater Wasilla had
an increase of 2 as well, while North Kenai had seen an
addition of 1. She queried the nature of the increases.

Ms. Pitney clarified that there was a m x of enployees that
constituted the increased positions; programmers and an

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 02/01/16 9:15 A M



accountant in the Departnent of Adm nistration, and
adm nistrative assistant and a legislative auditor in the
Legi slature constituted the 25 positions reflected on the
Qut si de Al aska li ne.

10: 06: 22 AM

Ms. Pitney addressed Slide 7, "Percent of Al FY17
Positions 100% UGF", which reflected in a bar graph the
percent of FY17 positions that were budgeted 100 percent on
unrestricted general funds. She noted that the Departnent
of Transportation and Public Facilities was heavily
federally funded, 98 percent; 86 percent the enpl oyees with
the Departnent of Corrections were 100 percent general
funded. She said that as the administration was working to
reduce unrestricted general fund positions, the starting
base was 50 percent less than the total state enployee
base. She stated that every position was not created equa
in ternms of funding source.

10: 07: 51 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy asked whether the nunbers on the chart for
education referred to only the departnent, and pointed out
that the nunmbers for the wuniversity had to be for the
entire Uni versity System t here is no Uni versity
Departnment. He understood that the education nunmbers on the
graph were for the departnment and not the 53 school
di stricts throughout the state.

Ms. Pitney replied in the affirmative. She noted that the
University line reflected all of the positions for al
canpuses that were 100 percent UGF

10: 08: 48 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked whether the graph on Slide 7
captured enpl oyees that were funded by designated receipts.

Ms. Pitney clarified that the chart contained only UG-. She
reiterated that di fferent enpl oyees were funded by
di fferent funding sources.

10: 09: 28 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon surm sed that the graph represented 30
percent of state enpl oyees.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 02/01/16 9:15 A M



Ms. Pitney thought that the percentage was closer to 45
percent. She clarified that 50 percent of the budgeted
sal aries were funded by UG-

10: 09: 52 AM

Ms. Pitney showed Slide 8, "Nomnal Salary and Benefit
Costs FY2000-2016". She pointed out the red bar, which
illustrated average benefits. She said that the rate
i ncrease between 2004 and 2007 was and increase on PERS.
She stated that beyond 2007 the rate increase was mainly
health benefits. She pointed out to the commttee that the
average salary level had remained flat, and that the
doubling of costs could be attributed to benefit rates.

10: 10: 55 AM

Ms. Pitney presented slide 9, "Real Salary and Benefit
Costs FY 2000-2016".

10:11: 02 AM

Ms. Pitney discussed Slide 10, "Union Contract Negotiation
Dates". She related that the adm nistration was waiting on
the outcomes of current contract negotiations, which were
hoped to of fset sone of the unallocated reduction.

10: 11: 36 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy asked whether 4-day work weeks or furlough
to reduce personnel costs had been di scussed.

Ms. Pitney stated that both ideas had been considered. She
said that the furlough discussion was receiving the nost
attention because it wuld not change the work week
timeframe, but woul d reduce hours.

10:12: 38 AM

Co-Chair Kelly asked whether the adm nistration had studies
what the Court System had done to reduce enpl oyee costs.

Co-Chair Kelly applauded the creative solutions being
di scussed by the Court System He urged the adm nistration
to follow suit.

10: 14: 19 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 02/01/16 9:15 A M



V5. Pitney offered that Slide 10, “Union Contract
Negoti ati on Dates" was for reference.

Ms. Pitney turned to Slide 11, "Additional Information
Avai |l able" and relayed that the slide contained a webpage
where all of the detail on every positon that had been cut
fromthe budget was avail abl e.

10: 15: 35 AM

Ms. Pitney showed Slide 12, which was an image of the
webpage for OVB, on a page titled "FY2017 CGovernor Personal
Services Reports."”™ She drew attention to page 12 of the
backup docunent, with a chart entitled "Departnent Position
Count Sunmary (10)". She explained that there had been, at
FY 16 Conference Conmittee, 477 positions deleted. She said
that in order to nmake the budget balance by nanagenent
pl an, an additional 214 positions were deleted. She stated
that the current budget proposed by the governor reflected
and additional cut of 181 positions. She spoke to Slide 13,
which offered a personal services filled enployee payrol
count two way conparison, FY16 and FY17.

10:17:41 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked whether the graph on Slide 13
could be found on the departnent's website.

Ms. Pitney replied in the affirmative. She reiterated that
every position for the Departnent of Admnistration could
be researched on the site for fund source, range, and
| ocati on.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon thought that it should be easy for the
adm nistration to emil the information on an Exce
spreadsheet to the conmttee.

Ms. Pitney responded that the information could be enuil ed.

10: 18: 54 AM

Ms. Pitney directed the conmttee's attention to the
docunent , "Positions, Vacancy Factors and Legislative
Control", which had been published in the Legislative

Fi nance D vision's handbook. She recommended the piece as a
reference docunent for |egislators.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 02/01/16 9:15 A M



10: 20: 03 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy spoke to the concept of reducing overal
government by 16 percent, and wondered whether it renained
a guiding principal for the adm nistration.

Ms. Pitney held that the concept remained a guiding
principal. She shared that the ten-year plan separated
agencies into the areas of health life, and safety. The
Department of Public Safety, Departnent of Corrections,
Departnment of Health and Social Services, the Court System
and agencies related to health life, and safety would not
be reduced to 16 percent w thout significant inpacts to the
overall wellbeing of Al aska residents. She stated that the
second area that could not be cut by 16 percent wthout
serious repercussions to Al askans was education: K-12, the
University, and AVTECH. She noted that all other governnent
was currently at a 27 percent UG- reduction.

10: 22: 05 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy asked whether the goal was to shrink the
overal | budget by 16 percent.

Ms. Pitney clarified that the ten year plan included a goal
of a 14 percent cut overall, with the cuts in governnent
agencies that were not responsible for health, life, or
safety bearing the brunt of the cuts.

Senat or Dunl eavy understood that over the next 10 years the
overal | governnent budget should be reduced by 14 percent.

Ms. Pitney stated that the 14 percent reduction in agency
operations should be realized by FY 19.

10: 24: 20 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy asked whet her t he adm ni stration
anticipated increased federal funding over the sane tine
frame, or to reduce agency operation by 14 percent while
hol di ng federal funding flat.

Ms. Pitney replied that to the degree that the state could
access federal dollars to provide the state services that
were currently being provided on UG, and every opportunity
for federal funding would be taken. She stated that, beyond

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 02/01/16 9:15 A M



Medi cai d expansion, the adm nistration did not expect nmuch
of an increase in federal dollars.

10: 25: 52 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy commented on the seeming grow ng
dependency on the federal governnment for noney. He feared
that federal dollars would come acconpani ed by nandates.

10: 26: 56 AM

Co-Chair Kelly harkened back to his I|iposuction metaphor
and |ikened federal dollars to additional fat cells.

10: 27: 59 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon probed Governor WAl ker's suggestion to
systematically change educati on.

Ms. Pitney responded that the Comm ssioner of Education and
t he governor were working together on the issue, inclusive
of school boards. She agreed to provide further information
at a later date.

10: 28: 40 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon hoped that the adm nistration would work
col | aboratively with the | egislature on the matter.

Senat or Dunl eavy remnded the conmmttee that t he
constitution charged the legislature with establishing and
mai ntaining for education in the state. He |anmented that
the legislature would receive a bill to pay for decisions
made by the executive branch of governnment. He urged the
adm nistration not to nmake great plans for education
wi thout first consulting the |egislature.

10: 30: 40 AM

Co- Chair Kelly discussed housekeepi ng.

10: 31: 29 AM

Co-Chair MacKi nnon stated that the subconmmttee on Mdicaid
reformwoul d neet Monday, Wdnesday, and Friday at 1: 30PM

10: 31: 39 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 02/01/16 9:15 A M



Ms. Pitney relayed that Commi ssioner Hoffbeck had been held
over in Senate State Affairs Commttee. She hoped that the
commttee could delay in the norning to accommpdate his

schedul e.

#
ADJ OQURNIVENT
10: 32: 07 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:32 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 02/01/16 9:15 A M



